
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




GREATER AUSTIN AREA TELECOMMUNICATIONS NETWORK (GAATN) INTERLOCAL AGENCY  
 


 


03.19.2024 GAATN Technical Subcommittee Minutes Page 1 of 3 
 


GAATN TECHNICAL SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 
March 19, 2024, at 1:30 p.m. 


City of Austin Permitting and Development Center 
6310 Wilhelmina Delco Dr, Rm 1202, Austin, TX 78752 


Teams Videoconference link provided 72 hours prior to meeting on homepage of www.gaatn.org 


Remote audio-only option for public access: (512) 831-7858, Access Code: 693 847 298# 
 


MINUTES 
 


1. Call to Order (Including a roll call): 
GAATN Technical Subcommittee Chairman Jaime Guerra called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.  
The following announced as present at the roll call: 
Paul Hodge, on behalf of Austin ISD (remote) 
Mark Stavis, on behalf of City of Austin (remote) 
Dain Herbat, on behalf of Travis County (remote) 
Steve Pyle, on behalf of State of Texas DIR (remote) 
Jaime Guerra, on behalf of UT-Austin (on site) 
Chris Phillips, on behalf of LCRA (remote) 
Justin Slocum, on behalf of Austin ISD (remote) 
Bo Kinsey, on behalf of Travis County (remote) 
Harold Nall, on behalf of UT-Austin (remote) 
Frank Ammons, on behalf of GAATN (remote) 
Carlos DeMatos, on behalf of GAATN (remote) 
Sarah Eichelberger, on behalf of GAATN (remote) 
A quorum was established at roll call.  
Members joining after roll call: 
Gary Weseman, on behalf of Austin Community College – joined at 1:32 p.m. (remote) 
Anthony Breckenridge, on behalf of City of Austin – joined at 1:32 p.m. (remote) 
GAATN Contractors: 
Doug Wilson, on behalf of JC Communications (remote) 
Chris Gonzales, on behalf of BryComm (remote) 


 
2. Citizen Communications: There were no citizen communications.  


 
3. Review and approve minutes from the regular Technical Subcommittee meeting of February 20, 2024  


Dain Herbat moved to approve the draft minutes as presented; Steve Pyle seconded the motion and it 
passed unanimously.  
 


4. Maintenance Contractor’s Report 
A. Maintenance report 


Chris reported that, since the last meeting, the maintenance contractor completed inspections on 
B2S and C1N with 17 corrected deficiencies between the two rings. There was nothing out of the 
ordinary to report.  


B. Inventory report. 
Chris reported that, since the last meeting, the maintenance contractor used 1,436 feet of reel 647 
on 3/2/24 for the SRN emergency repair at Hwy 290 and Cameron Road for suspected rodent 
damage.  
 



http://www.gaatn.org/





GREATER AUSTIN AREA TELECOMMUNICATIONS NETWORK (GAATN) INTERLOCAL AGENCY  
 


 


03.19.2024 GAATN Technical Subcommittee Minutes Page 2 of 3 
 


5. Network Manager’s Report 
A. Project status report 


Frank reported on the following upcoming and recently completed projects: 


• SRS upgrade project segment 4 – scheduled to complete 3/21/24 


• SRS upgrade project segment 6 – scheduled to complete 3/28/24 


• A2N splice case audit – in progress from 4/1/24 through 6/30/24 


• A1N upgrade project segment 2 phase 2 – scheduled to complete 4/4/24 


• SRS upgrade project segment 5 – scheduled to complete 4/11/24 


• C1N emergency repair 817 E. Braker – to be scheduled soon 
B. Network incident report 


Frank reported on the following network incidents since the last meeting: 


• 3/2/24 – SRN emergency repair at Hwy 290 and Cameron. This was caused by a rodent at the 
riser, and multiple entities were affected. BryComm performed an emergency repair. A 
previously approved underground re-route will take care of the permanent repair. Jaime asked 
if there was a u-guard in place at the riser. Chris said there was a 2 inch u-guard in a 4-inch pipe; 
he said something may have crawled in between the u-guard and the pipe. Chris said they are 
going to start installing a bell housing that cover the 4-inch pipes and step down to the 2-inch u-
guard so everything is covered 100%. Chris said it’s hard to put up 4-inch u-guards because it 
takes up so much space on the pole, so they typically put a smaller u-guard on the pole even 
though it’s a 4-inch pipe. Chris said going forward though for any projects, they will put the bell 
housing on to make sure everything is covered. Jaime asked if the installations of the bell 
housings will be tracked on the maintenance; Chris said no, it’s not part of the ongoing 
maintenance unless they are directed to do so by network management. Frank said there are 
two options: 1) have an assessment done by BryComm to figure out how many are needed in 
the field and complete this as a separate maintenance project, or 2) have BryComm place these 
as needed during their routine inspections and track them on the inspection report. Frank said 
management will work with Chris to determine pricing and circle back to the Tech Committee on 
a recommendation.  


• 2/20/24 – C1N emergency repair at 817 E. Braker. This was caused by a gunshot and only AISD 
was affected. As a very temporary fix, AISD’s fibers were rolled over and the fiber was patched 
pending the election moratorium. A temporary repair will be scheduled in the very near future 
and a permanent repair will be assessed and brought to the Tech and Board for consideration.  


C. Job budget report 
Sarah reported that management is tracking 51 jobs totaling $3.4 million. So far for FY24, 19 jobs 
have been completed and $571k has been invoiced. There are 32 jobs pending with $2.86 million 
encumbered. GAATN has received $162k in damage claim and project reimbursements. The fund 
balance bottom line is $703k. 


 
6. Committee Chairperson’s Update – discussion and possible action on: 


A. Seeking recommendation for A1N Union at 24th St. relocation developer-funded GAATN project 
at no cost to GAATN 
This item was discussed in executive session under Texas Government Codes 551.089 and 418.181. 
Upon reconvening in open session, Jaime Guerra moved to recommend for Board approval the A1N 
Union at 24th Street relocation developer-funded GAATN project at no cost to GAATN; Gary 
Weseman seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  
 
 







GREATER AUSTIN AREA TELECOMMUNICATIONS NETWORK (GAATN) INTERLOCAL AGENCY  
 


 


03.19.2024 GAATN Technical Subcommittee Minutes Page 3 of 3 
 


B. Austin ISD 2022 Bond Projects Impact to GAATN Super node Sites (Travis HS, Northeast ECHS, and 
Crockett HS) 
This item was discussed in executive session under Texas Government Codes 551.089 and 418.181. 
Upon reconvening in open session, there was no further discussion held or action taken.  


C. Backup NOCC Decommissioning 
Frank reported that an associate project manager that is assigned to the decommissioning of the 
Convention Center reached out to him regarding the location of fiber within a six-block radius. Frank 
said he made him aware of the decommissioning transport rings re-route design to ensure those 
pathways are not in conflict with the demolition and reconstruction. Jaime asked if he would be a 
contact to discuss reimbursement of make-ready costs. Frank said he informed him that GAATN has 
been working closely with the City of Austin (COA) regarding the decommissioning, but he did not 
discuss anything regarding requested in-kind contributions or concessions. Frank said he asked him 
to copy Rolando at the Convention Center on any correspondence since he is the point of contact for 
GAATN regarding the decommissioning. Frank said that the engineering and permitting for the 
decommissioning re-route of the four transport rings, as approved by the Board, is currently 
underway.  


D. Backup NOCC Relocation and Subcommittee Update 
Frank reported that the COA Historic Landmark Commission will be reviewing the request for the 
new NOCC to be built at a historic Austin Fire Department site at its April 3 meeting. Frank said he 
will let all members know if that is approved and the next step will be for Syd to begin negotiations 
with the COA for a new ILA for the new Backup NOCC. Jaime asked if the item will be on the consent 
agenda or if it will be on the regular agenda; he wants to know if someone from GAATN should be 
available to attend to answer questions if needed. Frank said he is checking with the COA and hopes 
to have that answer by the end of the week.  


 
7. Executive Session: At 1:51 p.m., Chairman Jaime Guerra adjourned the GAATN Technical Subcommittee 


for executive session under Tex. Gov't Code sections 551.089 and 418.181 (“H.B. 9”), to preserve 
confidentiality as permitted by law regarding Agenda Items 5A and 5B.  


 
At 2:43 p.m., Jaime Guerra reconvened the GAATN Technical Subcommittee in open session. Agenda 
Items 5A and 5B were the items discussed. Any additional discussion held or action taken in open session 
on items discussed in closed session are noted in the summary for that agenda item.  
 


8. Updated roll call upon reconvening in open session (only if Executive Session taken): An updated roll 
call was taken upon reconvening in open session and all members that announced as present at the initial 
roll call, plus the two members who joined after the initial roll call, announced as present at the updated 
roll call. A quorum was re-established.  
 


9. Confirm date, time, and location for the next Technical Subcommittee meeting as April 16, 2024 at 1:30 
p.m. at City of Austin Permitting and Development Center 6310 Wilhelmina Delco Dr, Room 1202, 
Austin, TX 78752 and via Microsoft Teams Videoconference. 
The date, time, and location for the next Technical Subcommittee meeting were confirmed; the meeting 
adjourned at 2:45 p.m. 








PROJECT STATUS REPORT


Job Name


A
p


p
ro


va
l  


   
(B


o
ar


d
 o


r 
N


tw
k 


M
gr


.)


CAT


R
in


g(
S)


C
o


n
tr


a
ct


o
r


Description Status
AE App


#
Application Status


Splice/  
Begin  Date


Test / 
Completed  


Date


D1N – Temp relocation at 1017 Springdale Rd (Perm rep 


Webberville)
08/07/18 Private D1N BRY


Developer funded project (replacement of 


Permanent repair @ Webberville app 8/7/18)
In Progress Scheduled Scheduled 04/24/24 04/25/24


UT--Travis County Civil and Family Courthouse 04/06/21 D Multi BRY Relocation In Progress AE Approved ROW Permit N/S N/S


A1N -- 3rd and Pressler Relocation 09/07/21 D A1N BRY Relocation of overhead lines to UG Design Pending Dev Cons Design N/S N/S


A2N -- Palm Park Relocation 11/16/21 D A2N BRY Relocation @ Palm Park Design N/A N/A N/S N/S


A1N Upgrade Project Segment 2 Phase#2 (A1N08-A1N11) 09/03/19 P A1N BRY Segment 2 Case A1N08 - A1N11 Phase#2 In Progress Scheduled Scheduled 05/01/24 05/02/24


A1N Upgrade Project Segment 11 (A1N57-A1N62) 07/07/20 P A1N BRY Segment 11 Case A1N57-A1N62 In Progress Scheduled Scheduled 05/22/24 05/23/24


A2N -- Splice Case Audit 2023 06/16/23 P A2N BRY Splice case audit In Progress In Progress In Progress 04/01/24 06/30/24


SRS Upgrade Project Segment 3 (ACC-SRS04) 04/12/22 P SRS BRY SRS Segment 3 192 upgrade In Progress Scheduled Scheduled 05/08/24 05/09/24


A1N Upgrade Project at TC REB (Input) 04/04/23 P A1N BRY Relocate A1N @ TC REB Input In Progress N/A In Progress N/A N/A


A1N Upgrade Project at TC REB (Output) 04/04/23 P A1N BRY Relocate A1N @ TC REB Output In Progress Pending In Progress N/A N/A


A1N -- ACC Backup NOCC Decommissioning 10/03/23 P A1N BRY Decomm of Backup NOCC at ACC In Progress AE EMR Desg Req AE EMR Desg Req N/A N/A


A2N Upgrade Project at TC REB 04/04/23 P A2N BRY Relocate A2N @ TC REB  Office In Progress Pending In Progress N/A N/A


A2N -- ACC Backup NOCC Decommissioning 10/03/23 P A2N BRY Decomm of Backup NOCC at ACC In Progress AE EMR Desg Req AE EMR Desg Req N/A N/A


B1N Perm Repair 11604 Stonehollow. DR N.2 01/11/22 R B1N BRY Permanent repair B1N Delayed Delayed Delayed Pending NOCC N/A N/A


B1S Perm Repair Fire Damage @ 4004 Banister Ln 09/01/20 R B1S BRY Fire damage at Galindo ES Delayed Delayed Delayed Pending NOCC N/A N/A


B1S Perm Repair at 7612 Bluff Springs Rd 07/07/20 R B1S BRY COA recycling truck fire permanent repair Delayed Delayed Delayed Pending NOCC N/A N/A


B2S Underground Re-route Hwy 71/Thornberry 08/10/21 P B2S BRY Elective underground re-route Delayed Delayed Delayed Pending NOCC N/A N/A


CapEx-N 0015-10-0062 N183 to NSH45 along IH35 02/07/23 D C1N BRY Relocation N183 to NSH45 along IH35 In Progress N/A Design N/A N/A


C1N Perm Repair Gun Shot 1202 E St Johns Ave. 03/08/22 R C1N BRY Perm Repair at 1202 E St Johns Ave. In Progress Pending ROW Permit N/A N/A


C1N Perm Rep Damage at IH35  Rutherford Ln 12/07/21 R C1N BRY Permanent repair C1N In Progress AE Approved In Progress N/A N/A


C1S Perm Repair at 405 Eberhart Ln. 09/05/23 R C1S BRY Permanent repair due to tree trimming damage Design Design Design N/A N/A


C1S Perm Repair at S. 1st and Emerald Wood Dr. 09/01/20 R C1S BRY Perm repair of Truck damage Delayed Delayed Delayed Pending NOCC N/A N/A


C2S TxDot Oak Hill Parkway US 290 PH#2 11/01/22 D C2S BRY TxDot Oak Hill Parkway US 290 PH#2 In Progress To Be Scheduled To Be Scheduled N/A N/A


Placement of eight GAATN poles on San Antonio 03/07/23 P Multi BRY Place eight new GAATN poles on San Antonio In Progress In Progress ROW Permit N/A N/A


C1N/SRN Reterminations Northeast HS 03/08/22 P Multi BRY Reterminations of supernode site Delayed Delayed Delayed Pending NOCC N/A N/A


SRN -- ACC Backup NOCC Decommissioning 10/03/23 P SRN BRY Decomm of Backup NOCC at ACC In Progress AE EMR Desg Req AE EMR Desg Req N/A N/A


SRN Perm Repair Cameron Rd between 51st ST 04/06/21 R SRN BRY Permanent repair SRN @ Cameron Rd In Progress N/A New Quote Required N/A N/A


SRN  Perm Repair at Cameron rd and HWY 290 E 07/13/21 R SRN BRY Storm damage at Cameron Rd. & 290 E. In Progress Pending New Quote Required N/A N/A


CapEx-S 0015-13-077 S IH 35 SH71 to SSH45 12/06/22 D SRS BRY Relocation  to S SH45 along IH35 from SH71 In Progress In Progress In Progress N/A N/A


SRS Upgrade Project Segment 5 (FS-6 to SRS09) 04/12/22 P SRS BRY SRS Segment 5 192 upgrade In Progress To Be Scheduled To Be Scheduled N/A N/A


SRS Upgrade Project Segment 2 (SRS03-SRS08) 04/12/22 P SRS BRY SRS Segment 2 192 upgrade In Progress ROW Permit To Be Scheduled N/A N/A


SRS -- ACC Backup NOCC Decommissioning 10/03/23 P SRS BRY Decomm of Backup NOCC at ACC In Progress AE EMR Desg Req AE EMR Desg Req N/A N/A


SRS Upgrade Project Segment 1 (SRS01-CH) 04/12/22 P SRS BRY SRS Segment 1 192 upgrade In Progress AE Approved Released for construction N/A N/A


GAATN Active Developer-Funded Projects  (Sorted by scheduled date, approval date)


GAATN Active Projects (Sorted by scheduled date, category)


Page 1 of 4 XX_GAATN Project Status Report Date UPDATED 4/12/2024







PROJECT STATUS REPORT


Job Name


A
p


p
ro


va
l  


   
(B


o
ar


d
 o


r 
N


tw
k 


M
gr


.)


CAT


R
in


g(
S)


C
o


n
tr


a
ct


o
r


Description Status
AE App


#
Application Status


Splice/  
Begin  Date


Test / 
Completed  


Date


C1N -- Emergency Repair 817 E. Braker 02/22/24 R C1N BRY Emergency repair gun shot (after moratorium) Completed Completed Completed 04/10/24 04/10/24


SRS Upgrade Project Segment 6 (SRS10 TO SRS11) 04/12/22 P SRS BRY SRS Segment 6 192 upgrade Completed Completed Completed 04/03/24 04/04/24


SRS Upgrade Project Segment 4 (SRS08.5 to FS-6) 04/12/22 P SRS BRY SRS Segment 4 192 upgrade Completed Completed Completed 03/20/24 03/21/24


C1N - UT Terminations at NE Early College High School 03/18/24 P C1N BRY Termination at NE Early College HS UT Completed Completed Completed 03/18/24 03/18/24


SRN - Emergency repair Cameron and Hwy 290 Rodent 03/02/24 R SRN BRY Emergency repair rodent damage Completed Completed Completed 03/02/24 03/02/24


B1N--Tear Down at 9099 Research Blvd. 02/28/24 R B1N BRY Truck damage Completed Completed Completed 02/28/24 02/28/24


C1N - Emer Temp patch at 817 Braker 02/20/24 R C1N BRY Temporary patch pending emergency repair Completed Completed Completed 02/20/24 02/20/24


A1N Upgrade Project Segment 1 (A1N03-A1N08) 09/03/19 P A1N BRY Segment 1 Case A1N03 - A1N08 Completed Completed Completed 01/09/23 01/10/24


SRN -- Damage at SRN15 11/08/23 R SRN BRY Brittle buffer tubes Completed Completed Completed 12/21/23 12/21/23


A1N Upgrade Project Segment 4 (A1N23-A1N26) 09/03/19 P A1N BRY Segment 4 Case A1N23 - A1N26 Completed Completed Completed 12/06/23 12/07/23


D1N -- Damage at Harold Court #2 12/06/23 R D1N BRY Vandalism (Possible Homeless encampment) Completed Completed Completed 11/07/23 11/07/23


C2S -- Oak Hill ES and Fire Station #51 Node damages 11/07/23 R C2S BRY Oak Hill Contractor damage Nodes Completed Completed Completed 11/07/23 11/07/23


D1N -- Damage at Harold Court #1 11/07/23 R D1N BRY Vandalism (Possible Homeless encampment) Completed Completed Completed 11/07/23 11/07/23


SRN -- Damage at Gullett Elem School PH #2 11/05/23 R SRN BRY Brittle buffer tubes (Blue) Completed Completed Completed 11/05/23 11/05/23


SRN -- Damage at Gullett Elem School PH #1 11/04/23 R SRN BRY Unknown Chainsaw damage at Gullett MS Completed Completed Completed 11/04/23 11/04/23


B1S -- SOLA Pole Relo at Barton Skyway 04/19/22 D B1S BRY Pole relocation Completed Completed Completed 10/03/23 10/03/23


B2S -- Damage between at Pearce Ln and FM 973 10/03/23 R B2S BRY Unknown vehicle damage cable Completed Completed Completed 10/03/23 10/03/23


C2S -- Damage at Escartment Dr 10/02/23 R C2S BRY Unknown vehicle damage cable Completed Completed Completed 10/02/23 10/02/23


A1N Upgrade Project Segment 8 (A1N42-A1N49) 07/07/20 P A1N JC Segment 8 Case A1N42 - A1N49 Completed Completed Completed 09/26/23 09/28/23


A1N Upgrade Project Segment 2 Phase#1 (A1N11-A1N14) 09/03/19 P A1N BRY Segment 2 Case A1N11 - A1N14 Phase#1 Completed Completed Completed 09/20/23 09/21/23


B1N Temp Relocation HWY183 and Technology Blvd 09/14/23 R B1N BRY Temp Relocation of UT and TC of 183 TXDot con Completed Completed Completed 09/14/23 09/14/23


A1N -- Damage at 4301 Speedway Dr #2 09/11/23 R A1N BRY Contractor field error cut existing fiber Completed Completed Completed 09/11/23 09/11/23


A1N Upgrade Project Segment 10 (A1N54-A1N57) 07/07/20 P A1N BRY Segment 10 Case A1N54 - A1N57 Completed Completed Completed 09/06/23 09/07/23


C1N- Damage at 904 Breaker Ln. 08/28/23 R C1N BRY Damage cause by a gun shot Completed Completed Completed 08/28/23 08/28/23


A1N -- Damage at 4301 Speedway Dr #1 08/24/23 R A1N BRY Contractor field error removal of existing fiber Completed Completed Completed 08/24/23 08/24/23


C2S TxDot Oak Hill Parkway US 290 PH#1 11/01/22 D C2S BRY TxDot Oak Hill Parkway US 290 PH#1 Completed Completed Completed 08/09/23 08/10/23


B1N Emer Repair HWY183 and Technology Blvd. TEMP 08/01/23 R B1N BRY Cable was damage by UG contractor Completed Completed Completed 08/03/23 08/03/23


C1N Emer Repair at Berkman Dr and Hwy 290 W. 07/26/23 R C1N BRY Cable was cut at a Car lot Completed Completed Completed 07/26/23 07/26/23


B2S Emer Repair at 6010 E Riverside Dr. 07/12/23 R B2S BRY Temp Repair Cable is on the ground Completed Completed Completed 07/12/23 07/12/23


GAATN Completed Projects  (Sorted by completion date, category)


GAATN-Driven Future Projects/Repairs     (Sorted by ring)                           


Page 2 of 4 XX_GAATN Project Status Report Date UPDATED 4/12/2024







PROJECT STATUS REPORT


Job Name


A
p


p
ro


va
l  


   
(B


o
ar


d
 o


r 
N


tw
k 


M
gr


.)


CAT


R
in


g(
S)


C
o


n
tr


a
ct


o
r


Description Status
AE App


#
Application Status


Splice/  
Begin  Date


Test / 
Completed  


Date


D1N – Perm relocation at 1017 Springdale Rd (Perm rep 


Webberville)
08/07/18 Private D1N BRY


Developer funded project (replacement of 


Permanent repair @ Webberville app 8/7/18)
In Progress To Be Scheduled N/S N/S


TC--NE - Metro Park to Foothills FY24 Private Tie Relocating and widening Immanuel Rd. 
To Be 


Scheduled
To Be Scheduled N/S N/S


A2N -- 4th & Sabine: Telecomm Crossing_Proposed Boring FY24 GAATN A2N BRY Join Boar across 4th and Sabine Design Design N/S N/S


B1N -- GAATN - COA Tie Cable relocation FY24 COA/GAATN B1N BRY CIP Relocation at Mesa and Anderson Ln Design Design N/S N/S


B1N -- 183 N Mobility Project (Spicewood Springs) FY24 CTRMA B1N BRY 183 ITS Duct Bank Abandonment 620 to Great Hills Design Design N/S N/S


B2S -- Relocation at Burleson Rd and Montopolis Dr FY24 Private B2S BRY Relo B2S/Level3/B1S Multi cables (Nodes) Design Design N/S N/S


B2S -- FM 973 and Elroy Road CSJ 1200-03-61 FY24 TXDOT B2S BRY Relocation FM 973 and Elroy Rd Design Design N/S N/S


A1N -- Shaol Cycle (812 W. 11th Street) Private A1N Overhead Electric Relocation Underground Design Design N/S N/S


A1N -- Union at 24th St. Relocate Private A1N Relocation UG @ 24th Street Design Design N/S N/S


A1N  -- Relocation block 150 Private A1N Relocation of infrastructure 416 W> 12th Street Design Design N/S N/S


A2N  -- Relocation block 150 Private A2N Relocation of infrastructure 416 W> 12th Street Design Design N/S N/S


B1N -- Relocation 2361 Kramer Ln Private B1N Relocation UG 2361 Kramer Ln. Design Design N/S N/S


B1N -- Verde Square Multi Family Relo Private B1N Relocation UG 10435 Burnet Rd Design Design N/S N/S


CSJ 0265-01-113 SH 71 ABIA TXDOT B2S BRY Relocation along ABIA and HWY 71 (Comp 2026) Design Design N/S N/S


C1N -- Relo TxDot at FM973 TXDOT C1N TxDot Relocation at FM973 Design Design N/S N/S


D1N -- Relo MLK and Springdale Rd CPO D1N CIP Relocation MLK & Springdale Design Design N/S N/S


D1N -- The Right Angle, 2700 East 5th Street Private D1N Relocation at Pleasant Valley Design Design N/S N/S


Level 3 -- Relocation block 150 Private Level 3 Relocation of infrastructure 416 W> 12th Street Design Design N/S N/S


M35 CapEx-Central 0015-13-388 GAATN - NOPC TXDOT Multi Multi site Design Design N/S N/S


B1S/B2S/Level3/Tie -- Relo (HEB-8) Congress - Oltorf Private Multi Underground relocation of multiple rings Design Design N/S N/S


SRN-D1N-Tie -- relocation 3219 Manor Rd Private Multi Relocation of infrastructure Design Design N/S N/S


SRS-Level3- Relocation 2200-2209 South 1st St Private Multi Relocation of infrastructure Design Design N/S N/S


SRS -- 1311 South Lamar Overhead to UG Convention Private SRS Developer relocating SRS UG Design Design N/S N/S


Developer-Driven Future Projects       (Sorted by anticipated FY, developer)                           


Page 3 of 4 XX_GAATN Project Status Report Date UPDATED 4/12/2024







PROJECT STATUS REPORT


Job Name


A
p


p
ro


va
l  


   
(B


o
ar


d
 o


r 
N


tw
k 


M
gr


.)


CAT


R
in


g(
S)


C
o


n
tr


a
ct


o
r


Description Status
AE App


#
Application Status


Splice/  
Begin  Date


Test / 
Completed  


Date


D1N -- Austin Energy HQ (ATX) COA D1N New Node Install AE and ATX In Progress In Progress N/S N/S


UT -- Tie 1303 San Antonio UT Tie BRY Tie Cable to overlash In Progress In Progress N/S N/S


SRS -- COA CAPCOG New Node COA SRS BRY New Node Install Completed Completed Completed 04/09/24 04/09/24


B1N -- UT / JJ Pickle Node redundancy Install UT B1N BRY Node Activation Completed Completed Completed 02/05/24 02/05/24


B1S -- COA Fire Station 53 Goodnight Ranch COA B1S BRY New Node Install Completed Completed Completed 01/04/23 01/04/24


C1N -- UT / JJ Pickle Node redundancy Install UT C1N BRY New Node Install Completed Completed Completed 12/04/23 12/04/23


B1S -- Phoenix Academy Decomm AISD B1S BRY Node Decommissioning Completed Completed Completed 11/28/23 11/28/23


B2S -- COA -- Riverside CTM HQ COA B2S BRY Node Decommissioning Completed Completed Completed 11/20/23 11/20/23


A2N - TC – Star Flight at Dell Seton Decomm TC A2N BRY Node Decommissioning Completed Completed Completed 10/11/23 10/11/23


A2N - COA – Town Lake Center Node Replacements COA A2N BRY Node replacements Completed Completed Completed 09/28/23 09/28/23


B2S -- COA ACC Marshalling Facility COA B2S BRY New Node Install Completed Completed Completed 06/01/23 06/01/23


A1N -- ACC Node at UT WWH ACC A1N New Node Install Design


D1N -- Health Center Academy Decomm ACC D1N Node Decommissioning Design


B1N -- CoA APD Substation Canyon Creek COA B1N New Node Install Design


B2S -- APD Mounted Patrol COA B2S New Node Install Design


A1N -- DIR Node Upgrade at DROC DIR A1N Node Upgrade Design


A1N -- DIR Node Upgrade at DPS Lamar St DIR A1N Node Upgrade Design


B1S -- COA APH Dove Springs Community Center COA B1S New Node Install Design


C1N -- COA Tie Collony Pool COA C1N Tie Cable to overlash Design


Entity-specific Future Projects  (Sorted by review date, entity)


Entity-specific Active Projects (Sorted by scheduled date, entity)


Entity-specific Completed Projects (Sorted by completion date)


Page 4 of 4 XX_GAATN Project Status Report Date UPDATED 4/12/2024








FY24 JOB BUDGET REPORT


REIMB


LABOR EMR CABLE TOTAL


$150,000 $1,100,000


B1S Overhead Pole relocation S. Lamar Brtn Sky 04/19/22 Mgr 22 D Y B1S BRY $9,011 $0 $0 $9,011 $0 $0 $0 $9,011 $0 $0 $0


Conduit Proofing Butler Trail 10/03/23 Mgr 24 M Y Multi BRY $12,329 $0 $0 $12,329 $0 $0 $0 $12,329 $0 $0 $0


Splice Case Audit SRN 07/12/22 Brd 23 M Y SRN BRY $14,550 $0 $0 $14,550 $0 $0 $0 $14,550 $0 $0 $0


CTECC Conduit Inspection 08/01/23 Mgr 24 P Y Multi BRY $2,365 $0 $0 $2,365 $0 $0 $0 $2,365 $0 $0 $0


A1N Upgrade Segment 10 06/02/20 Brd 21 P Y A1N BRY $55,410 $0 $0 $55,410 $0 $0 $0 $55,410 $0 $0 $0


A1N Upgrade Segment 8 06/02/20 Brd 21 P Y A1N JC $39,216 $0 $0 $39,216 $0 $0 $0 $39,216 $0 $0 $0


A1N Upgrade Segment 4 09/03/19 Brd 20 P Y A1N BRY $47,495 $0 $0 $47,495 $0 $0 $0 $47,495 $0 $0 $0


A1N Upgrade Segment 1 09/03/19 Brd 20 P Y A1N BRY $53,210 $0 $0 $53,210 $0 $0 $0 $50,288 $0 $0 $0


SRS Upgrade Segment 4 04/12/22 Brd 23 P Y SRS BRY $37,882 $7,654 $9,167 $54,703 $0 $0 $0 $37,882 $7,654 $9,167 $0


B1N Emergency Repair Hwy 183 Technology 08/01/23 Mgr 24 R Y B1N BRY $19,979 $0 $0 $19,979 $0 $0 $0 $19,979 $0 $0 $9,750


C1N Emergency Repair Berkman and Hwy 290 07/26/23 Mgr 24 R Y C1N BRY $6,527 $0 $0 $6,527 $0 $0 $0 $6,527 $0 $0 $0


C1N Emergency Repair 904 Braker Lane 08/28/23 Mgr 24 R Y C1N BRY $5,676 $0 $0 $5,676 $0 $0 $0 $5,676 $0 $0 $0


B1N Investigative Troubleshooting 10/26/23 Mgr 24 R Y B1N BRY $13,153 $0 $0 $13,153 $0 $0 $0 $13,153 $0 $0 $0


B2S Emergency Repair 6010 Riverside 07/12/23 Mgr 24 R Y B2S BRY $2,764 $0 $0 $2,764 $0 $0 $0 $2,764 $0 $0 $0


D1N Emergency Repair Harold Court 11/05/23 Mgr 24 R Y D1N BRY $5,745 $0 $0 $5,745 $0 $0 $0 $5,745 $0 $0 $0


B2S Emergency Repair Pearce Ln & FM973 10/03/23 Mgr 24 R Y B2S BRY $10,060 $0 $0 $10,060 $0 $0 $0 $10,060 $0 $0 $0


C2S Emergency Repair Escarpment 10/02/23 Mgr 24 R Y C2S BRY $8,718 $0 $0 $8,718 $0 $0 $0 $8,718 $0 $0 $0


B1S Emergency Repair SOLA pole replacement 01/16/24 Mgr 24 R Y B1S BRY $3,435 $0 $0 $3,435 $0 $0 $0 $3,435 $0 $0 $0


D1N Emergency Repair Harold Court #2 12/06/23 Mgr 24 R Y D1N BRY $8,079 $0 $0 $8,079 $0 $0 $0 $8,079 $0 $0 $0


SRN Emergency Repair SRN15 Brittle Fiber 11/08/23 Mgr 24 R Y SRN BRY $8,233 $0 $0 $8,233 $0 $0 $0 $8,233 $0 $0 $0


SRN Emergency Repair Gullet Elem Saw damage 11/04/23 Mgr 24 R Y SRN BRY $6,961 $0 $0 $6,961 $0 $0 $0 $6,961 $0 $0 $0


SRN Emergency Repair Hwy 290 Cameron 03/02/24 Mgr 24 R Y SRN BRY $7,492 $0 $0 $7,492 $0 $0 $0 $7,492 $0 $0 $0


C1N Emergency Temp Repair 817 E. Braker Lane 02/20/24 Mgr 24 R Y C1N BRY $2,007 $0 $0 $2,007 $0 $0 $0 $2,007 $0 $0 $0


B1N Emergency Repair 9099 Research Blvd 02/28/24 Mgr 24 R Y B1N BRY $1,723 $0 $0 $1,723 $0 $0 $0 $1,723 $0 $0 $0


TxDOT C2S Oak Hill Parkway 11/01/22 Brd 23 D N C2S BRY $176,022 $43,683 $54,769 $274,474 $113,264 $43,683 $0 $62,758 $0 $54,768 $0


TxDOT IH-35 Capitol Extension South 12/06/22 Brd 23 D N Multi BRY $263,440 $59,197 $26,745 $349,382 $263,440 $59,197 $26,745 $0 $0 $0 $363,182


TxDOT C1N Cap Ex North 02/07/23 Brd 24 D N C1N BRY $437,612 $49,958 $61,966 $549,536 $437,612 $49,958 $61,966 $0 $0 $0 $549,535


Splice Case Audit A2N 07/12/22 Brd 23 M N A2N BRY $71,248 $0 $0 $71,248 $50,848 $0 $0 $20,400 $0 $0 $0


NOCC Decommissioning A1N 02/06/24 Brd 24 P N A1N BRY $67,036 $0 $7,025 $74,061 $67,036 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,025 $0


NOCC Decommissioning A2N 02/06/24 Brd 24 P N A2N BRY $291,273 $0 $14,050 $305,323 $284,573 $0 $0 $6,700 $0 $14,050 $0


NOCC Decommissioning SRN 02/06/24 Brd 24 P N SRN BRY $35,145 $0 $2,248 $37,393 $35,145 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,248 $0


NOCC Decommissioning SRS 02/06/24 Brd 24 P N SRS BRY $55,423 $0 $2,529 $57,952 $55,423 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,529 $0


A1N Upgrade Segment 2 (2 PHASES + ADD UG WORK) 09/03/19 Brd 20 P N A1N BRY $119,082 $0 $0 $119,082 $48,790 $0 $0 $70,292 $0 $0 $0


A1N Upgrade Segment 11 06/02/20 Brd 21 P N A1N BRY $56,308 $0 $0 $56,308 $40,767 $0 $0 $15,541 $0 $0 $0


SRS Upgrade Segment 1 04/12/22 Brd 23 P N SRS BRY $31,281 $9,348 $7,749 $48,378 $29,115 $9,348 $0 $2,166 $0 $7,749 $0


SRS Upgrade Segment 2 04/12/22 Brd 23 P N SRS BRY $33,037 $0 $9,535 $42,572 $33,037 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,535 $0


SRS Upgrade Segment 3 04/12/22 Brd 23 P N SRS BRY $33,133 $0 $8,505 $41,638 $33,133 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,505 $0


SRS Upgrade Segment 5 04/12/22 Brd 23 P N SRS BRY $44,242 $11,712 $15,876 $71,830 $44,242 $11,712 $0 $0 $0 $15,876 $0


SRS Upgrade Segment 6 04/12/22 Brd 23 P N SRS BRY $38,996 $10,173 $0 $49,169 $38,996 $10,173 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


Pole replacements (8) San Antonio Street 03/07/23 Brd 23 P N A1N BRY $32,251 $0 $0 $32,251 $15,056 $0 $0 $17,195 $0 $0 $0


A1N REB Building Upgrade Input 04/04/23 Brd 24 P N A1N BRY $53,685 $10,737 $0 $64,422 $53,685 $10,737 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


A1N REB Building Upgrade Output 04/04/23 Brd 24 P N A1N BRY $48,275 $9,655 $0 $57,930 $48,275 $9,655 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


A2N REB Building Upgrade 04/04/23 Brd 24 P N A2N BRY $38,874 $7,775 $0 $46,649 $38,874 $7,775 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


C1S Permanent Repair 405 Eberhart Lane 09/05/23 Brd 24 R N C1S BRY $85,786 $21,485 $21,637 $128,908 $85,786 $21,485 $0 $0 $0 $21,637 $133,600


SRN permanent repair at Cameron Rd & 52nd 04/06/21 Brd 22 R N SRN BRY $50,936 $0 $12,506 $63,442 $50,936 $0 $12,506 $0 $0 $0 $0


SRN permanent repair at HWY290 and Cameron 07/13/21 Brd 22 R N SRN BRY $108,297 $10,938 $0 $119,235 $108,297 $10,938 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


C1N Permanent Repair IH35 and Rutherford 12/07/21 Brd 22 R N C1N BRY $43,527 $8,012 $20,507 $72,046 $35,617 $8,012 $0 $7,910 $0 $20,507 $94,120


C1N permanent repair 1202 E. St. Johns 03/08/22 Brd 23 R N C1N BRY $38,220 $9,364 $8,600 $56,184 $38,220 $9,364 $8,600 $0 $0 $0 $0


JOB COUNT 54 $119,551 $173,596 $1,150,187


COMPLETED 24 ACTUAL


PENDING 30 $161,648


TOTAL REMAINING JOB COSTS ENCUMBERED


$293,148FY2024 MAC
100%


TOTALS $3,151,503


JOB NAME & DESCRIPTION
APPROVAL 


DATE


APP 


BY
FY APP


JOB 


CAT


44%


INVOICED


DONE RING VENDOR LABOR EMR CABLE LABOR EMR CABLE EXPECTED
$950,000


JOB INFORMATION


TOTAL ENCUMBERED TOTAL INVOICED


56% $2,678,420 $763,308


$3,444,650


$2,558,869 $589,712







FY24 JOB BUDGET REPORT


D - Developer Projects $1,182,403 4 34%


 P - GAATN Projects $1,469,615 23 43%


R - Repairs $694,505 24 20%


M - Maintenance Items $98,127 3 3%


FY 2024 $1,447,418 26 42%


FY 2023 $1,106,379 12 32%


FY 2022 $426,382 7 12%


FY 2021 $244,684 6 7%


FY 2020 $219,787 3 6%


JOBS BY CATEGORY


JOBS BY FISCAL YEAR APPROVED


FUND BALANCE TRACKER


FY24 JOBS BY CATEGORY


TOTAL COSTS OF PROJECTS AWARDED $3,444,650


FY24 MAC BUDGET $1,100,000
FY24 BOFY PROJECT RESERVE $1,735,435


6 JOBS DELAYED UNTIL AFTER NOCC** ($246,665)


** Note: Management has identified six jobs that can be delayed until after the NOCC relocation is fully funded. This 


amount reflects the encumbrance for these six jobs that will not be paid out until the projects resume. This amount has 


been added back into the fund balance bottomline.


GUARANTEED REMAINING PROJ REIMBURSEMENTS $900,297


FY24 REIMBURSEMENTS RECEIVED $161,648


GAATN GUARANTEED FUNDS $3,897,380


FUND BALANCE BOTTOMLINE* $699,395


* Note: This amount reflects how much would be left if GAATN did not receive any additional funding for future fiscal years 


beyond FY24. This amount includes any reimbursements for projects guaranteed by contract as well as actual 


reimbursements received. It does not include anticipated reimbursements for unsettled damage claims. GAATN also has 


$250K in reserve for unplanned projects and $1.85 million in emergency reserve for catastrophic loss events; those 


accounts are not included in this calculation.


D - Developer 
Projects


34%


P - GAATN 
Projects


43%


R - Repairs
20%


M -
Maintenance 


Items
3%








GREATER AUSTIN AREA TELECOMMUNICATIONS NETWORK (GAATN) INTERLOCAL AGENCY  
 


 


04.16.2024 GAATN Technical Subcommittee Agenda  Page 1 of 2 
 


GAATN TECHNICAL SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 
April 16, 2024, at 1:30 p.m.  


City of Austin Permitting and Development Center 
6310 Wilhelmina Delco Dr, Rm 1202, Austin, TX 78752 


Teams Videoconference link provided 72 hours prior to meeting on homepage of www.gaatn.org  


Remote audio-only option for public access: (512) 831-7858, Access Code: 693 847 298# 
 


As required by Government Code sections 551.127(c) & (e), the GAATN officer chairing the meeting will be 
physically present at the meeting location; other GAATN Technical Subcommittee members may attend in 
person or remotely. Members of the public who wish to participate in the meeting remotely may participate 
via video conference at the link provided on the homepage of www.gaatn.org or via audio conference by 
dialing the number and access code noted above. Except during the Citizen Communication item, public 
attendees, whether in person or remote, will not be permitted to speak or otherwise interrupt the meeting. 
Members of the public who are participating in person or remotely will only be able to attend the open 
sessions of the meeting. 
 


AGENDA 
 


1. Call to Order (Including a roll call)  
 


2. Citizen Communications (3 minutes) 
You may address the Technical Subcommittee for up to three (3) minutes on GAATN issues, whether 
those issues are posted on this agenda or not. If you inquire about a subject not on this agenda, then, by 
law, the Technical Subcommittee cannot discuss the subject with you at this Technical Subcommittee 
meeting and the Technical Subcommittee cannot discuss the subject among themselves. The Technical 
Subcommittee, however, may respond to your inquiry with a brief factual statement or state existing 
GAATN policy on the subject. In addition, after hearing you, the Technical Subcommittee may place the 
subject of your inquiry on a future agenda. 


 
3. Review and approve minutes from the regular Technical Subcommittee meeting of March 19, 2024 (5 


minutes) 
 


4. Maintenance Contractor’s Report 
A. Maintenance report 
B. Inventory report. 


 
5. Network Manager’s Report 


A. Project status report 
B. Network incident report 
C. Job budget report 


 
6. Committee Chairperson’s Update – discussion and possible action on (45 minutes): 


A. Austin ISD 2022 Bond Projects Impact to GAATN Super node Sites (Travis HS, Northeast ECHS, and 
Crockett HS) 


B. Backup NOCC Decommissioning 
C. Backup NOCC Relocation and Subcommittee Update 
 



http://www.gaatn.org/

http://www.gaatn.org/





GREATER AUSTIN AREA TELECOMMUNICATIONS NETWORK (GAATN) INTERLOCAL AGENCY  
 


 


04.16.2024 GAATN Technical Subcommittee Agenda  Page 2 of 2 
 


7. Executive Session (if an executive session is necessary, Technical Subcommittee members and other 
authorized participants will use a different teleconference line not accessible to the general public; once 
the executive session is concluded, the meeting will resume on the Teleconference number given above): 
Adjourn for closed session, under one or more of Tex. Gov't Code sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.073, 
551.074, 551.076, 551.089 and/or one or more of sections 418.175 - 418.181 (“H.B. 9”), to seek legal 
advice or to preserve confidentiality as permitted by law (including but not limited to pending, 
anticipated or contemplated litigation concerning):        
A. Construction, equipment, and product warranty claims. 
B. Damage to GAATN fiber optic cables, equipment, hardware, and other property.  
C. Contractual, tort or other legal or equitable claims by or against GAATN; or 
D. The procedures and operations of the Board or the organization. 
E. GAATN Management and Operation 


 And/or to consider matters concerning: 
F. Real property purchase, exchange, lease, easements, or value. 
G. Gifts or donations. 
H. Personnel.  
I. Security devices, security personnel or security procedures or protocols; or 
J. Issues involving GAATN physical plant detail made confidential by law. 
K. Or other matters as permitted by the Texas Open Meetings Act 


 
               Reconvene for discussion and actions, if any, on matters considered in closed session.  


 
8. Updated roll call upon reconvening in open session (only if Executive Session taken)  


 
9. Confirm date, time, and location for the next Technical Subcommittee meeting as May 21, 2024 at 1:30 


p.m. at City of Austin Permitting and Development Center 6310 Wilhelmina Delco Dr, Room 1202, 
Austin, TX 78752 and via Microsoft Teams Videoconference. 
A. Add any agenda topics for next month’s meeting.  


 





